
CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

Historic Preservation Commission and Staff Seating 

The Planning Division is the coordinating division for the Historic Preservation Commission. 
For information call (760) 839-4671. 

CAROL REA 
Chair 

CAROL BREITENFELD 
Commissioner 

ERROL COWAN 
Commissioner 

JAMES SPANN 
Vice-Chair 

MARC CORRELL 
Commissioner 

JESSE HANWIT 
Commissioner 

EVA HETER 
Assistant City Clerk 

NICOLE PURVIS 
Commissioner 

 
 

  

AGENDA 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
201 N. Broadway 

City Hall Council Chambers 
3:00 P.M. 

May 17, 2018 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. FLAG SALUTE 

C. ROLL CALL 

D. SWEARING IN OF NEW COMMISSIONERS 

E. SELECTION OF CHAIR, VICE-CHAIR AND DETERMINATION OF SEATING ORDER 

F. REVIEW OF MINUTES: March 8, 2018 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

The Brown Act provides an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Commission on any item of interest to the 
public, before or during the Commission's consideration of the item. If you wish to speak regarding an agenda item, please fill out a 
speaker's slip and give it to the minutes clerk who will forward it to the Chairman. 

Electronic Media: Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be 
submitted to the Planning Division at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at which it is to be shown. 

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system. The media must be labeled 
with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact information for the person 
presenting the media. 

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. City staff will 
queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak. Materials shown to the Commission during the 
meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the City. 

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content of electronic 
media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable to live presentations. 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under "Oral Communications" which is listed at the 
beginning and end of the agenda. All persons addressing the Historic Preservation Commission are asked to state their names for 
the public record. 

Availability of supplemental materials after agenda posting: Any supplemental writings or documents provided to the Historic 
Preservation Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning Division 
located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council Chambers while the meeting is in session. 

The City of Escondido recognizes its obligation to provide equal access to public services to individuals with disabilities. Please contact 
the A.D.A. Coordinator, (760) 839-4643, with any requests for reasonable accommodation, at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 



Historic Preservation Commission 
                                                                                                                       May 17, 2018 Agenda, Page 2 

 

G. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION: 

"Under State law, all items under Written Communications can have no action and will be referred 
to the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." 
 

H. ORAL COMMUNICATION: 
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communications can have no action and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda." This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the Commission on any item of business within the jurisdiction 
of the Commission. 
 

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS: None 

 

J. CURRENT BUSINESS: 

1. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. PHG18-0011 

REQUEST:  Proposed Remodel of the Historic Ritz Theater Building 

ZONING/LOCATION: Historic Downtown District/ 301-309 East Grand Avenue 

APPLICANT: Tim Cruz, Architect   STAFF: Jay Paul 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conditional Approval 

 

2. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM14-0047 

REQUEST:  Proposed Double Garage and Second Story Addition to OEN Residence 

ZONING/LOCATION: R-1-6 (Single-Family)/ 1165 Chestnut Street 

APPLICANT: Sammuel Mireles   STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

3. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM18-0082 

REQUEST:  Proposed Exterior Modifications to Local Register Garage Associated with its 
Conversion into an Accessory Dwelling Unit 
ZONING/LOCATION: R-2-12 (Multi-Family)/ 421 East 4th Avenue 

APPLICANT: Nancy Lane    STAFF: Paul Bingham 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval 

 

4. DISCUSSION OF AD HOC WORK GROUPS AND MILLS ACT VISITS 

REPORT BY:  Adam Finestone 

 

5. REPORT ON MARCH 23, 2018 OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION CONFERENCE 

  REQUEST: Staff 

  STAFF SUMMARY: Paul Bingham 

 

 6. REPORT ON MAY HISTORIC PRESERVATION MONTH ACTIVITES 

  REQUEST: Staff 

 

Note: Current Business items are those that under state law and local ordinances do not require 
either public notice or public hearings. Public comments may be limited to a maximum time of three 
minutes per person. 

 

K. ORAL COMMUNICATION:  
"Under State law, all items under Oral Communication can have no action, and will be referred to 
the staff for administrative action or scheduled on a subsequent agenda."  This is the opportunity 
for members of the public to address the commission on any item of business within the 
jurisdiction of the Commission. 

 

L. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 

M. ADJOURNMENT TO NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED HPC MEETING ON JULY 19, 2018   



  Agenda Item No.: F 

Page 1 of 6 
 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO  
 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
ESCONDIDO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION  

 
March 8, 2018 

 
The regular meeting of the Historic Preservation Commission was called to order at 
3:01 p.m. by Chair Rea in the City Council Chambers, 201 North Broadway, 
Escondido, California.  
  
Commissioners present: Chair Rea, Vice-chair Spann, Commissioner Hanwit, 
Commissioner Breitenfeld, Commissioner Danskin, Commissioner Lee, and 
Commissioner Correll. 
 
Commissioners absent: None.  
 
Staff present: Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II; Adam Finestone, Principal 
Planner; and Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk.   
 
MINUTES:   
 
Moved by Commissioner Correll, seconded by Vice-chair Spann, to approve the 
minutes of the October 19, 2017 meeting. Motion carried unanimously (7-0-0).  
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: Received.      
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: None.    
 
CURRENT BUSINESS:  
 
Taken out of Order 
 
2. DESIGN REVIEW – Case No. ADM18-0037 
 
REQUEST:  Relocate Local Register cottage to front of lot and construct a three-
unit apartment building in rear of lot  
Location: Creekside Neighborhood District (Multi-family) – 340 Waverly Place 
 



 

 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview of the property and 
noted that the architect representing the new property owner wanted to construct 
apartments on the subject property. The request involved relocating an existing 
Local Register cottage from the rear to the front of the property, better aligning it 
with other historic structures on the street, and constructing a three-unit apartment 
building in the rear of the property, with access taken from the alley. Staff 
recommended approval.  
 
Discussion ensued regarding a clarification of the proposed parking. 
 
Larry Pappas, Architect, San Diego, provided an overview of the proposed 
parking.  
 
Commissioner Hanwit asked if the historic structure would be maintained as best 
as possible. Mr. Pappas replied in the affirmative, and that it would serve as an 
accessible unit. He also noted the historic structure would be relocated so that the 
most historic part of it would be visible from the street.  
 
Chair Rea thanked staff and the applicant for incorporating the historic structure 
into the project.  
 
Commissioner Danskin suggested using a color pallet that would be in line with 
the surrounding properties. He then asked if any street improvements were part of 
this project, noting his opposition to requiring curbs, gutters and sidewalks. 
Mr. Pappas noted he did not have this information.  
 
Commissioner Danskin asked if the project would be fenced. Mr. Pappas replied 
in the affirmative.  
 
ACTION:  
 
Moved by Commissioner Danskin, seconded by Vice-chair Spann, to approve 
staff’s recommendation. Motion carried unanimously (7-0-0).   
 
3. DISCUSSION OF ANNUAL HISTORIC PRESERVATION AWARDS 

 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, introduced and facilitated discussion of the 
upcoming annual Historic Preservation Awards, and suggested honoring 
Escondido’s agricultural history.   
 
Commissioner Danskin suggested providing an award to the JR Filanc 
Construction property located at 740 North Andreasen. Staff believed they had 
already received an award, but offered to investigate further. 



 

 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Commissioner Correll suggested awarding the property located at 1048 Metcalf 
Street next year when restoration was complete. He also suggested an award for 
the adobe at 2646 Mary Lane, however it was determined that this property is not 
within the Escondido’s city limits. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding recognizing Kevin Grangetto for Heritage Park as 
well as for his family’s residence, the farm labor camp at the North County Transit 
Center, Henry Avocado, the History Center offices, and the Forgotten Barrel 
Winery (at the location of the former Ferrara Winery). It was noted that Forgotten 
Barrel had recently received the Mayor’s historic preservation award at the annual 
State of the City address.  
 
Commissioner Breitenfeld suggested talking to the Farm Bureau for potential 
recipients from the farming community. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding incorporating the background history of Grape Day 
Park into the presentation.  
 
Chair Rea noted she would speak with Kevin Grangetto regarding other potential 
recipients.  
 
Commissioner Danskin felt the awards should be given to individuals versus 
entities.  
 
Staff informed the commission that, in order to present the awards at the May 9th 
City Council meeting, nominations would be needed by April 9th. 
 
The consensus was that Chair Rea would communicate with Kevin Grangetto 
regarding potential recipients and consider the aforementioned recommendations. 
Staff would email potential award recipients to the Commission.  
 
4. DISCUSSION OF CLG REPORT FOR 2016/2017 
 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, referenced the staff report and requested 
input. 
 
The Commission and staff discussed the report.  
 
Chair Rea referenced the date for annual Mother’s Day Home Tour.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 

5. DISCUSSION OF MILLS ACT VISITS 
 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner, noted that the City Attorney’s Office was 
reviewing the legalities of Commissioners visiting Mills Act properties as a result 
of Brown Act concerns. Visits are on-hold until this issue is resolved. Principal 
Planner Finestone stated that staff would report back at a future meeting. 
 
Chair Rea questioned whether establishing a volunteer program similar to the way 
the Fire Department uses volunteers, would help alleviate any legalities for Mills 
Act visits. Commissioner Danskin noted that sending code enforcement to review 
Mills Act properties might be counterintuitive to the goals of the Commission to 
promote preservation.  
 
6. AD HOC WORK GROUP REPORT ON MID-CENTURY GUIDELINES 
 
Chair Rea noted that the guidelines were being updated with mid-century being 
included. Staff was asked to check whether City Council approval would be 
required in order to update the guidelines. 
 
Principal Planner Finestone noted that he would be requesting input from the City 
Attorney’s office as to legalities of the ad hoc committee as it relates to Brown Act 
concerns and would report back at a future meeting.   
 
Taken out of order.  
 
1. DESIGN REVIEW - Case No. ADM17-0138 
 
REQUEST:  Remodel storefront of historic 1930’s commercial building 
Location: Historic Downtown District – 125 E. Grand Avenue 
 
Paul Bingham, Assistant Planner II, provided a brief overview and proposed design 
for the property located at 125 East Grand Avenue. He noted that this was a code 
enforcement case that was previously presented to the Commission who had 
requested that revisions to the plans be made and that the project be brought back 
to them for further consideration. Since then, the applicant has hired a new 
architect to address the design concerns.  Staff recommended approval of the 
project.  
 
Vice-chair Spann was opposed to the color pallet. He also felt the cost for 
constructing a storefront in the original location would be cost prohibitive.  
 
Commissioner Correll felt the proposed plans were piecemeal.   
 



 

 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Commissioner Hanwit felt the tile surrounding the address should be maintained.   
 
Chair Rea noted that the property had potential as a restaurant with an outdoor 
dining space.  
 
Commissioner Danskin asked if staff was aware of the type of business being 
proposed for the subject property. Mr. Bingham noted that the intent was to use it 
as a retail space. He also noted that a restaurant use would require extensive 
infrastructure improvements.  
 
Commissioner Danskin felt the color pallet was inappropriate and was opposed to 
the proposed canned lighting on the outside.  
 
Vice-chair Spann noted his main concern would be how the structure ultimately 
blended in with Grand Avenue.  
 
Chair Rea identified her preferred design, which showed the storefront brought 
fully forward. 
 
Commissioner Danskin felt the address should be maintained if it was an historic 
element.  

ACTION: 

Moved by Vice-chair Spann, seconded by Commissioner Rea, to approve the plan 
with the original storefront going out to the sidewalk, to the satisfaction of City staff.  
The motion also included preserving the original tile property address numbers if 
possible. Motion carried unanimously (7-0-0).  
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - None.  
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: 
 
Discussion ensued regarding a clarification of the status of Item 9 on the previous 
minutes.  
 
Commissioner Correll asked staff the status of the Hacienda de Vega property on 
Centre City Parkway. Staff replied that as yet no project has been submitted. 
 
Staff and the Commission thanked Commissioners Danskin and Lee for their 
services.  
 



 

 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Commissioner Lee noted that he had struggled with preservation from a personal 
preference. He felt that sometimes the story behind a resource was just as 
important as the resource. He also felt there would be underlying issues when 
trying to preserve midcentury homes. 
 
Commissioner Danskin felt telling the story for an historic resource was a key 
aspect of preservation.   
   
Chair Rea noted that the History Center would be publishing a new book covering 
Escondido’s history since 1990.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:42 pm. The next regular meeting was scheduled 
for May 17, 2018 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________     _____________________ 
Adam Finestone, Principal Planner   Ty Paulson, Minutes Clerk 


	HPC 05-17-18 Agenda.pdf
	HPC Minutes 030818.pdf



